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1. Please provide (by year) the amounts and reasons for any paybacks, credits, and/or
liquidated damages the County has assessed against the incumbent vendor over the term
of the current contract.
Staffing credit amounts as indicated: October 2012 – September 2013 = $182,254.00;
October 2013 – May 2014 = $130,866.24.
2. Are any of the facilities currently subject to any court orders or legal directives? If “yes,”
please provide copies of the order/directive.
HCSO is not the subject of any court orders or legal directives related to inmate health
care.
3. With regard to lawsuits pertaining to inmate health care at the Orient Road Jail (ORJ) and
Falkenburg Road Jail (FRJ), frivolous or otherwise:
1. How many have been filed against the County and/or the incumbent health care
provider in the last three years?
2. How many have been settled in that timeframe?
Since 2010, there have been 2 lawsuits filed claiming negligence; and 1 case has been
settled.
4. Please provide the following data regarding the size of the inmate population.
1. Two years’ worth of facility-specific historical data
2. Five-year population projections for the ORJ and FRJ
Part A - This question is non-specific and cannot be answered as asked. Part B – This is
addressed on page 23 of the RFP.
5. We understand that the facilities are currently accredited the National Commission on
Correctional Health Care (NCCHC). Please provide the following information.
1. Most recent accreditation date for the facility.
2. Copy of most recent accreditation audit report for the facility.
The most recent NCCHC audit was completed on May 22, 2014. We have not received
official results as of this time.
6. Please provide the contract-required health service staffing for each of the facilities (ORJ
and FRJ), by facility, shift, and day of the week.

An overall staffing matrix has been distributed along with the current contract and all
addendums in response to previous questions from other potential bidders. This matrix
does not specify positions by facility, shift, and day of the week. As this specific
information is up to the bidder to determine.
7. Please also provide the actual health service staffing currently in place at each of the
facilities (ORJ and FRJ), i.e., any positions being provided and/or hours being worked
over and above what is required by the contract.
HCSO does not have this information.
8. Please provide a listing of the current health service vacancies by position for the ORJ
and FRJ.
HCSO does not have this information.
9. With regard to background checks, please confirm who is financially responsible for
paying for this service: the County or the Vendor?
HCSO will conduct all background checks on incoming employees; and absorb the costs
of such.
10. Will the County allow “grandfathered” credentialing for incumbent professional staff
already employed or contracted by the current Vendor?
HCSO will allow for incumbent professional staff to be "grandfathered" if a new vendor
is selected and retains the employee.
11. Please provide the wage/pay rates your incumbent health service vendor is paying to its
staff at each of the facilities (ORJ and FRJ).
1. How old is this data?
2. Where did this data come from, e.g., County records, data from the incumbent
vendor, etc.?
HCSO does not have this information.
12. Please confirm that the time health services staff members spend in orientation, in-service
training, and continuing education classes will count toward the hours required by the
contract.
HCSO orientation and in-service training hours are counted as hours worked. However,
continuing education hours and company orientation hours are not considered hours
worked.
13. Please provide an inventory of office equipment (e.g., PCs, printers, fax machines,
copiers) currently in use at each facility (ORJ and FRJ) and identify which equipment
will be available for use by the selected provider.

The current medical provider utilizes a total of 63 HCSO computers & 7 HCSO printers.
Computers: FRJ Clinic/Infirmaries/Administration-45; ORJ Clinic-12; ORJ
Booking/Intake-6. Printers: FRJ-4; ORJ-3.
14. Please provide an inventory of medical equipment (e.g., blood pressure cuffs, ultrasound,
x-ray machines, etc.) currently in use at each facility (ORJ and FRJ) and identify which
equipment will be available for use by the selected provider.
The following HCSO equipment is available for use by the contractor: dinamap-23;
ultrasound-0; xray-2.
15. How does the health unit staff at each facility (ORJ and FRJ) currently access the
Internet: through a facility network or through connectivity provided by the incumbent
Contractor? Who is financially responsible for such Internet access?
HCSO is currently responsible for internet connectivity.
16. Please identify with whom the incumbent vendor subcontracts to provide laboratory
services.
Integrated Regional Laboratories is the current subcontractor for laboratory services.
17. How are dental services currently provided: (a) onsite, with permanent County-owned
equipment; (b) onsite, through mobile dentistry (PLEASE IDENTIFY VENDOR); or (c)
offsite?
Dental services are provided on-site with permanent County-owned equipment.
18. How are optometry services currently provided: (a) onsite, with permanent Countyowned equipment; (b) onsite, through mobile optometry (PLEASE IDENTIFY
VENDOR); or (c) offsite?
Optometry services are provided off-site via subcontracted vendor with a contracted rate
via the current healthcare provider.
19. What is the average length of time an offender spends at a reception center before being
transferred to his/her permanent housing location?
If a person is directly assigned to the Falkenburg Road Jail for medical or segregation
purposes, the person is routinely transferred within 8 hours of arrival in booking. All
other persons are held at the Orient Road Jail between 14-21 days, and then transferred to
the Falkenburg Road Jail.
20. Please provide the current Sick Call schedule (days of week and timeframes) for each
facility.
Sick call is currently conducted 7 days per week from 8 A.M. - 4 P.M.

21. Please identify any specialty clinics currently conducted onsite, and indicate how many
hours per week each clinic is held.
The following specialty clinics are currently being provided on-site: orthopedic (1/2 day,
twice monthly, non-surgical patients); obstetrics (1/2 day, once weekly, physician);
dialysis (3 times per week, no nephrologist on-site); physical therepy (3 times per week);
HIV specialty (1/2 day, once per week, ARNP).
22. Please identify the number, type, and timeframes of any backlogs (e.g., chronic care
clinics, offsite referrals, dental encounters, etc.) that currently exist at each facility
separately.
The number of backlogged patients in the various clinics flucuates daily. Backlogs
routinely range from 5 – 30 patients for the following clinics: urgent, chronic, psych
nurse, psych eval, psych meds, psych doctor, dental, sick call.
It is the HCSO's expectation that all patients scheduled to be seen on a particular day, get
seen that day.
23. We understand that the FRJ has an infirmary. Please provide additional information
regarding this infirmary unit.
1. Average occupancy/fill rate for the unit
2. Staffing schedule for the unit’s clinical personnel
3. Are patients in the unit always within sight or hearing of a qualified health care
professional?
Part A: The average daily population for the male infirmary is 41; and the average daily
population for the female infirmary is 46. Part B: Male Infirmary: 1 RN & 2 LPN's 24/7;
Female Infirmary: 1 RN & 1 LPN 24/7; provider (qualified ARNP or physician) rounds 7
days per week. Part C: Patients are always within sight or hearing of qualified medical
professionals.
24. Is the County’s Mental Health Diversion program also provided at the FRJ, or is it
located only at the ORJ?
The Mental Health Diversion office is located at the Orient Road Jail. However, MHD
staff may also respond to the Falkenburg Road Jail to interview prospective clients.
25. Does the County require 24/7 coverage by mental health staff at the ORJ for intake
screenings and other mental health services?
HCSO requries 1 licensed mental health professional 24/7 to be on-site for coverage at
both facilities. We do NOT require a licensed mental health professional 24/7 at each
facility. (This does not include, nor does it cover, Mental Health Diversion staff.)
26. Based on the information provided during the pre-proposal conference, we understand
that there is a confinement unit solely used to house those detainees on suicide watch and

psych observation at FRJ. Are there any cells for this purpose at the ORJ? If yes, how
many?
The Orient Road Jail has 112 confinement cells available for use (adminisrative,
disciplinary, and psychiatric purposes). However, none of these cells are currently in use.
27. Do mental health staff provide special services/screening/programs to detainees housed in
the Detox Unit at FRJ?
Mental health staff conduct evaluations on all detainees housed in the detox unit at the
Falkenburg Road Jail.
28. How many arrestees were evaluated for the Diversion Program during the last year?
192 persons have been evaluated for the Mental Health Diversion Program since October
2013 (program inception date).
29. Please provide the following information about medication administration.
1. Who administers medications, e.g., RNs, LPNs, medical assistants?
2. Where does medication distribution take place, i.e., do medication carts go to the
housing units or do inmates come to the medical units?
3. How often is medication distributed each day?
4. How long does it take to perform the average medication distribution process?
Part A: LPN's administer medication in all units. RN's also administer medication in the
infirmaries. Part B: Medications are adminstered from medication carts which are taken
to the housing units. Part C: Medications are distributed up to 3 times per day. They can
be more frequently in the infirmaries. Part D: It takes 1.5 hours, on average, for
medication distribution per housing unit.
30. How many medication carts will the County make available for the use of the incoming
vendor?
The HCSO does not own the medication carts (40). They are owned by Diamond
Pharmacy Services.
31. Do the facilities currently maintain a Keep-On-Person (KOP) program?
The only keep-on-person medications currently authorized are topicals, inhalers, and
nitroglycerin.
32. Please provide copies of the following documents.
1. The drug formulary currently in use at the facilities. HCSO does not have this
information.
2. The laboratory formulary currently in use at the facilities Laboratory formulary is
attached.
3. A current pharmacy/formulary management report HCSO does not have this
information.

33. On average, what percentage of County inmates are prescribed psychotropic drugs each
month?
21.20% of inmates are currently prescribed psychotropic medications.
34. What is the average number of inmates receiving pharmaceutical treatment each month
for the following conditions?
1. Hepatitis C: One (1)
2. HIV/AIDS: Forty-nine (49)
3. Hemophilia: Three (3) to four(4) per year.
35. Please provide monthly statistical data for each of the following categories.
1. Number of inpatient offsite hospital days: CY13 - 1,107; CY14 (YTD) - 445
2. Number of outpatient surgeries: CY13 – 24; CY14 - 13
3. Number of outpatient referrals: CY13 – 533; CY14 - 270
4. Number of trips to the emergency department: CY13 – 694; CY14 - 232
5. Number of ER referrals resulting in hospitalization: CY13 – 249; CY14 100.
Hospital admissions may or may not be result of emergency room visits.
6. Number of ambulance transports: CY13 – 397; CY14 - 205
7. Number of dialysis treatments: CY13 – 147; CY14 - 68
36. Please provide annual spend amounts for the past two years for the following categories.
1. Total offsite care: CY12 - $1,890,432.00; CY13 - $3,263,677.00; CY14 (YTD) $1,042,345.69.
2. Total pharmaceutical expenditures: HCSO does not have this information.
3. Laboratory services HCSO does not have this information.
4. X-ray services HCSO does not have this information.
37. Under the new contract, who will be financially responsible for the following services:
the County or the Contractor?
1. Inpatient hospitalization
2. Outpatient surgeries
3. Other outpatient referrals
4. ER visits
5. Offsite dialysis
6. Offsite diagnostics (lab/x-ray)
7. Pharmaceuticals
The contractor will be responsible financially for all services in this question unless
agreed upon during contract negotiations.

38. Under the current contract, who is financially responsible for the following services: the
County or the incumbent Contractor?

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Inpatient hospitalization
Outpatient surgeries
Other outpatient referrals
ER visits
Offsite dialysis
Offsite diagnostics (lab/x-ray)
Pharmaceuticals

The incumbant contractor is currently responsible financially for all services listed in this
question with some exceptions which are outlined in the current contract.
39. Please confirm that under the new contract, the Contractor will not be financially
responsible for any of the following services.
1. Neonatal or newborn care after actual delivery
2. Elective or mandated abortion
3. Cosmetic surgery, including breast reduction
4. Sex change surgery (including treatment or related cosmetic procedures)
5. Contraceptive care including elective vasectomy (or reversal of such) and tubal
ligation (or reversal of such)
6. Extraordinary and/or experimental care
7. Elective care (care which if not provided would not, in the opinion of the Medical
Director, cause the inmate’s health to deteriorate or cause definite and/or
irreparable harm to the inmate’s physical status)
8. Autopsies
9. Any organ (or other) transplant or related costs, including, but not limited to labs,
testing, pharmaceuticals, pre- or post-op follow-up care, or ongoing care related to
a transplant, etc.
10. Medications for the treatment of bleeding disorders, including, but not limited to
Factor VIII and IX
Part A-H: The contractor will not be financially responsible for services outlined in these
parts of the question. Part I: if a transplant patient enters the facility, the contractor will
cover costs associated with care. Part J: The contractor will be financially responsible for
patients with bleeding disorders.
40. Please confirm that the following costs will be included under any cap on offsite care.
1. Inpatient hospitalization
2. Outpatient surgeries
3. Other outpatient referrals
4. ER visits
5. Ambulance transportation
6. Offsite dialysis
7. Offsite diagnostics (lab/x-ray)

Proposers have the ability to structure their proposal in any manner they desire. The
current cap was agreed upon when we signed our current contract. However, this does not
mean the next contract has to be structured the same.
41. With regard to the cap on off-site care:
1. Please identify the amount of any offsite care cap in the current contract.
2. For each of the past three (3) years, please indicate by how much (if at all) the
County’s offsite care expenses have exceeded the contracted cap amount.
Part A: This amount is listed in the current contract, which has been provided to all
perspective proposers. Part B: Amounts provided include charges incured prior to
booking while in-custody and catastrophic claims: FY12 - $692,509.50; FY13 –
1,312,043.09; FY14 YTD - $837,466.15.
42. Please indicate the type and amount of performance guaranty provided by the incumbent
health services contractor under the current contract.
This question is addressed in the current contract in Section 11.5.
43. Please indicate the order of precedence among the solicitation documents (e.g., the RFP,
initial responses to questions, subsequent responses to questions, exhibits and
attachments, etc.) so that in case of contradictory information among these materials,
bidders know which of the conflicting data sets to use to create their narratives and
calculate their prices.
Contradictory information in responses to identical questions should not exist.
Identification of such a discrepancy should be brought to my attention for final
clarification or distinction. If the point in question pertains to information in the RFP an
amendment would be issued. If not, a memo of clarification would be issued and would
be the final reference for your response.

